Minutes of the Committee on Resources for Self-represented Parties

February 12, 2016

Members Present

Judge Marsha Thomas, Carol Frank (remotely), Jessica Van Buren, Sue Crismon, Mary Jane Ciccarello, , Shaunda McNeill, Chris Martinez, Virginia Sudbury, Judge Barry Lawrence, Barbara Procarione, Judge Douglas Thomas (remotely), Jaclyn Howell-Powers (remotely)

Members Excused

Leti Bentley Lisa Collins Judge Ryan Evershed Eric Mittlestadt Carl Hernandez Susan Griffith

Staff

Nancy Sylvester

Guests

Kiki Neofitos

(1) Approval of minutes/Announcements.

Judge Marsha Thomas welcomed everyone to the meeting and asked for corrections to the December minutes. Several minor corrections were made. She then asked for a motion to approve the minutes. A motion was made and seconded. The December 2015 minutes were approved as corrected. Jessica Van Buren introduced her guest, Kiki Neofitos, who is a Hinckley Institute intern. She helps people fill out OCAP forms in the library. They take 1 hour appointments, including over the phone.

(2) Update on Subcommittees and Strategic Plan Priorities

(a) Forms

Ms. Van Buren reported on forms. She said they have been updating the motion forms, based on changes to rules like Rule of Civil Procedure 7. There are 2 new webpages. Shaunda McNeill helped look over the debt collection page; included on the page is a link to a debt collection answer form. The forms are intended to be neutral. Sue Crismon noted that ULS has a hardship affidavit, too. Another page is a separate page on alternative service. They also recently revised the adult name change page. It was one of the oldest on the website.

Ms. Van Buren then reported on the appellate forms. She reminded the committee that there was an effort to modernize the forms and guides and then move forward with a pro bono project. The forms have been posted since the fall. Lisa Collins has had a lot of positive feedback. They are also doing a CLE

for attorneys and paralegals on the appellate process and plan to have a CLE on the pro bono project in the spring.

Ms. McNeill then brought up an OCAP issue on consent to service. She said there is no acceptance of service form. There was a discussion about some of the issues on acceptance of service. There is a potential false default as part of a form called "Acceptance of Service, Waiver, and Consent." The form basically says, "I accept service and I allow for this to go forward and all of the terms of the petition." This then creates a default in OCAP, which is erroneous. If someone is accepting service, they are entering an appearance, not defaulting. The committee decided that it should write a letter to the OCAP board and have Eric Mittlestadt take it back to the OCAP committee.

Judge Lawrence noted if someone accepts service, they need to understand they had better answer or it will be a true default. Mary Jane said the Self-Help Center just advises people to go through the full service process. Barbara Procarione said when both parties come in, they will explain that by signing the consent form, they agree to everything in the divorce packet. Sometimes they say that's fine, other times not. Ms. Procarione said they won't let the parties sign the form if there is a disagreement.

(b) Lawyer Directories & Referral Sources

Judge Thomas noted that some of the committee members had met with Patricia LaTulippe, who had done research on unbundled services in other states.

Unbundled Section of the Bar

Virginia Sudbury reported on the unbundled section of the Bar progress. Virginia said Connie Howard at the Bar is providing them space and drinks for a brown bag CLE on unbundled services. She already has around 40 attorneys that are interested. It includes all kinds of practitioners, not just domestic. Judge Lawrence asked for clarification on the project. Ms. Crismon said Ms. Sudbury is making a living on unbundled services. She said she charges, for example, \$200 per hour to do an evidentiary hearing. She does a Rule 75 limited appearance and puts it on the record what the scope is. It's not low bono; she does charge the full amount but for discrete tasks, rather than getting a retainer up front. Sue said clients feel like they have more control over their case. The brown bag is tentatively scheduled for March 11.

Pro Se Clinic & Order to Show Cause Clinic

Ms. Sudbury then reported on the Pro Se calendar. Commissioner Sagers has now expanded the calendar to include free mediators from Utah Dispute Resolution. Cases are being resolved if they are close to being done. They are informed on what informal hearings are. Judge Lawrence asked how many cases are referrals from judges. Should he be telling other judges to refer? Ms. Sudbury said yes, especially if they are missing one item. Judge Lawrence says he uses a stock minute entry on what is missing. He said he will send it to other judges and clerks. Ms. Sudbury said the calendar is currently expanding to 4th and 5th districts and commissioners would like it in Tooele. 5th district is also starting up a guardianship calendar. Ms. Sylvester mentioned that she may have a law student in her department this summer and asked how the student could be involved. Mary Jane said the student would be most helpful doing the drafting of orders and other documents with the Self-Help Center. Ms. Crismon brought up issues with Tooele and there was a discussion about what was needed to do that calendar.

Chris Martinez discussed the Pro Se Clinic, which he said complements the pro se calendar well. He said he can give legal advice and he doesn't screen for anything currently. He said he can appear on a limited scope basis if his schedule allows, but has over 100 full scope cases with his regular job. Mr. Martinez uses a conflict form and then helps on a variety of things. He said he typically sees 7 people on Thursday afternoons. Judge Lawrence asked if it dovetails with the calendar. Mr. Martinez said it does if the pro se calendar doesn't resolve everything.

Judge Thomas said it sounded like the clinic has been a success since Stewart Ralphs was here to report about it. Mr. Martinez confirmed that but said he has a concern on the pro se calendar with regard to the volunteers. They need a greater rotation of different attorneys. Sustainability is a question.

There is a pro bono attorney recruitment event in March at the Law and Justice Center the information for which Ms. Sylvester will send around to the committee. Committee members can come to talk to the attorneys about the domestic pro se calendar. Ms. Crismon asked how we can activate the attorneys that are less active. The committee discussed waiving CLE fees. Ms. Ciccarello discussed doing a series of free CLE's if people sign up to do one pro se calendar. Judge Lawrence noted that there is an untapped market with people who are retiring and want to exercise their skills. Judge Marsha Thomas talked about using students and judicial assistants and said the committee will have a focus group on this. Ms. Ciccarello then brought up that the Self-Help Center needs more funding to help with these projects. Ms. Sylvester discussed writing a Bar Journal article to educate attorneys on this issue, especially retiring attorneys, and suggested providing more recognition for those who help.

Judge D. Thomas then brought up the Standing Committee on Children and Family Law. He said the committee has been given the charge to examine all structures and processes surrounding family law in the courts, including the commissioner system and whether there should be a family court. He noted this is not about juvenile court, though, only district. These discussions may have an impact on those processes. He offered an invitation to the committee members to send him ideas on what they would like to see in the best of all possible worlds to improve domestic relations processes, such as incentives to lawyers who provide help to pro se litigants, specialized calendars, etc.

Update on AAA Task Force

Ms. McNeill then showed the beta version of the Bar's new lawyer directory. She said the head of the AAA subcommittee preparing it wanted this committee's feedback. Committee members said a "sounds like" feature would be helpful. They also said the terms need definitions. Ms. McNeill said lawyers will have more comprehensive options to pick what they want in their profiles. There was a suggestion to have the top 5 or 6 most common scenarios and then a "more" button. Ms. McNeill said the AAA Committee felt that level of experience wasn't important. She said there will also be a question mark after each term on fee terms. Committee members noted that there should be income screening on this because there could be bad referrals if a patron is low income.

Ms. McNeill then discussed other AAA updates including that there is a bill in the legislature to increase the cap on small claims. She also noted that the Bar Commission will vote shortly to make Courthouse Steps Bar administered; Courthouse Steps will stay at the Bar for now rather than using space in courthouses.

Pro Bono Efforts List

Judge M. Thomas noted that it was overwhelming when she started with the committee to grasp what all of the pro bono efforts were. So Ms. Van Buren and Ms. Ciccarello started a list of the efforts. Ms. Ciccarello said New York has an annual report that frames their efforts nicely. She said she would like to make our list as comprehensive as possible and organize it eventually like New York's. Judge Lawrence suggested putting it in the Bar Journal. Ms. Crismon noted that the list was missing the Bar's signature programs and offered to email them to Ms. Van Buren. The committee then discussed the list's audience. If it is meant for the public, it would require a different approach. Ms. Crismon suggested organizing it by pro bono and modest means.

Ms. Van Buren requested that the committee send her information on missing projects. A committee member noted that And Justice For All has information about all legal non-profits in Utah.

(c) Education

Updating Self-Represented Parties Curriculum for Justice Courts

Judge M. Thomas reported that she had assisted in updating the curriculum in justice courts. Mr. Martinez asked whether the curriculum included how to refer self-represented parties to resources. There was some discussion about that. Ms. Crismon asked about QR codes, noting that some low income people may not type in web addresses but do know how to use a QR scanner.

(d) Malpractice Insurance

Judge M. Thomas briefly discussed malpractice insurance and said some efforts are still not covered. Ms. Crismon suggested taking each project and sitting down with Elizabeth Wright at the Utah Bar to figure out what is covered. They can look at the insurance policy and see if it can be interpreted broadly.

(e) New Assignment from Judicial Council

Ms. Sylvester then updated the committee on a new assignment from the Judicial Council involving early case conferences in domestic cases. She said this new charge from the Judicial Council closely correlates to what the Standing Committee on Children and Family is undertaking. Judge Lawrence said Rule 26 may have interfered with Rule 16 early case conferences. He said he doesn't know a case exists if no hearing is scheduled. Mr. Martinez said if every case had an early case conference, his work load will increase significantly. Ms. Sylvester said the subcommittee would be working on details and addressing those concerns later in the month.

(f) Update on Implementation of Law Student Assistance Rule 14-807

Ms. Sylvester updated the committee on the law student assistance rule, the amendments of which are now in effect. She said she and Carl Hernandez had written a Bar Journal about the amendments and that would be coming out later in the month.

(3) Other Business/Future Meetings

The next committee meeting will be April 1, 2016.

The meeting adjourned at 1:53 pm.